
BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY 

 

 
 

 

Notice of Health and Adult Social Care Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

Date: Monday, 17 January 2022 at 6.00 pm 

Venue: Committee Suite, Civic Centre, Poole BH15 2RU 
 

Membership: 

Chairman: 

Cllr J Edwards 

Vice Chair: 

Cllr L-J Evans 

Cllr D Butler 
Cllr D Farr 
Cllr C Johnson 
 

Cllr A Jones 
Cllr C Matthews 
Cllr M Robson 
 

Cllr R Rocca 
Cllr S Phillips 
Cllr K Wilson 
Louise Bate (Healthwatch Dorset) 
 

 

All Members of the Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee are 
summoned to attend this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda 

below. 
 

The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following 
link: 
 

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4827 
 

If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please 
contact:  or email  
 

Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office: Tel: 01202 118686 or 
email press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

  
This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 

A
v
a
ila

b
le

 o
n
lin

e
 a

n
d
 

o
n
 t
h
e
 M

o
d
.g

o
v
 a

p
p
 

 

 

 

 
 
GRAHAM FARRANT 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 
 7 January 2022 

 



 

 susan.zeiss@bcpcouncil.gov.uk 

 



 

 

AGENDA 
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

1.   Apologies  

 To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors. 

 

 

2.   Substitute Members  

 To receive information on any changes in the membership of the 
Committee. 

 
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their 

nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their 
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute 

member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the 
front of this agenda should be used for notifications. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interests  

 Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this 
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance. 

Declarations received will be reported at the meeting. 

 

 

4.   Confirmation of Minutes 5 - 14 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2021. 
 

 

5.   Public Issues  

 To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in 

accordance with the Constitution. Further information on the requirements 
for submitting these is available to view at the following link:- 

  
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%2
0-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf  

  
The deadline for the submission of a public question is 4 clear working days 

before the meeting. 
The deadline for the submission of a public statement is midday the 
working day before the meeting. 

The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the 
meeting. 

 

 

6.   Action Sheet 15 - 16 

 To note and comment as required on the action sheet which tracks 
decisions, actions and outcomes arising from previous Committee 
meetings. 

 

 

7.   COVID-19 Update  

 For the Committee to receive an update from Adult Social Care  

https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s2305/Public%20Items%20-%20Meeting%20Procedure%20Rules.pdf


 
 

 

Services on COVID-19, to enable the Committee to monitor the 
ongoing pandemic and scrutinise the ongoing response to COVID-
19. 
 

8.   Impact of the Pandemic (COVID-19) on Adult Social Care 17 - 24 

 To receive a summary of the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic and 2021/22 
Winter period on the delivery of adult social care, including a summary of 
the financial impact. 

 

 

9.   Adult Social Care Emergency Duty Service 25 - 30 

 To update the Committee on the performance of the Adult Social Care 
Emergency Duty Service. 

 

 

10.   Portfolio Holder Update  

 To receive any updates from the relevant Portfolio Holders on key issues or 
actions that have been taken since the last meeting, as appropriate. 

 

 

11.   Forward Plan 31 - 40 

 To consider and comment as appropriate on the development of the 
Committee’s Forward Plan. 

 

 

 



 – 1 – 
 

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL 
 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

 
Minutes of the Meeting held on 29 November 2021 at 6.00 pm 

 
Present:- 

Cllr J Edwards – Chairman 

Cllr L-J Evans – Vice-Chair 

 

Present: Cllr D Butler, Cllr D Farr, Cllr C Johnson, Cllr A Jones, 
Cllr C Matthews, Cllr C Rigby, Cllr M Robson, Cllr R Rocca and 
Cllr S Phillips 

 
164. Apologies  

 

Apologies were received from Cllr K Wilson. 
 

165. Substitute Members  
 

Cllr C Rigby substituted for Cllr K Wilson. 
 
NOTE: Cllrs A Jones, S Phillips and R Rocca joined the meeting remotely 

via Microsoft Teams. They were all informed of the relevant legislation that 
meant they would be prevented from voting on any motions that may occur 

during the course of the meeting. 
 

166. Declarations of Interests  
 

The Vice-Chair declared, for transparency, that she was an employee of the 

University Hospitals Dorset Foundation Trust. 
 
Cllr C Johnson declared, for transparency, that she was an employee of the 

University Hospitals Dorset Foundation Trust. 
 

Cllr C Matthews declared, for transparency, that he was a governor of the 
University Dorset Hospitals Trust and that, in relation to item 7 the BCP 
Carers Strategy, that his wife worked for the Alzheimer’s Society. 

 
167. Confirmation of Minutes  

 

The minutes of the meeting held on 27 September 2021 were approved as 
a correct and accurate record. 

 
168. Public Issues  

 

There were no public questions, statements or petitions received for this 
Meeting. 

 
169. Action Sheet  

 

5

Agenda Item 4



– 2 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

The Committee noted the Action Sheet. 
 

170. BCP Carers Strategy  
 

The Director of Adult Social Services (DASS) and the Commissioning 

Manager: Prevention and Wellbeing introduced and presented the report. 
The main points were as follows: 
 

 The Adult Social Care (ACS) service were in the process of 
reviewing the Pan-Dorset strategic vision across the county, with the 

relevant partners. 

 This process and vision was to reflect the challenges that carer’s 
face in BCP, for example 11% of all carers are unpaid. 

 The process had included workshops, surveys, meetings with the 
BCP Carer Reference Group and the Pan-Dorset steering group. 

Along with the Carer’s Rights Day, held in Kinson, that was attended 
by three BCP Councillors. 

 The new Carers Strategy survey had been written up and completed 
and was now ready to be sent out.  

 The Committee were recommended to request an update on the 

progress of this at a future meeting. 

 

The Committee asked several questions following the report. Answers were 
provided by the Director of Adult Social Services and the Commissioning 
Manager: Prevention and Wellbeing: 

 

 The Committee heard that it was difficult to identify every unpaid 

carer in the BCP area, because many do not consider themselves to 
be an unpaid carer. This was something that the ASC service were 

working on with their Pan-Dorset and strategic partners to address in 
order to better reach and inform the unpaid carers in BCP. 

 Members were informed that the ASC service would be asking 

carers for their feedback on terminology relating to care, including 
the use of the term ‘unpaid carer’ itself. 

 The Committee heard, following a question on self-directed funding 
for carers in BCP, that the ASC service provide a lot of different 
ways of supporting carers, but this must be a key focus area of the 

strategy. It was heard that the ASC service commission a lot of 
services on behalf of carers, for example the ‘sitting service’, 

whereas some authorities pass a direct payment to the individual to 
purchase this themselves. BCP carers had told the ASC service that 
they like the Council to commission this service for them. This would 

lower the amount of people that receive self-directed support. 

 Members were told that BCP as a conurbation contains a large 

cohort of what is considered ‘elderly’ carers. In comparison to 
Dorset, BCP has a different client base, in some ways due to the 

contrast of the urban / rural areas. The Committee heard that BCP 
do commission some joint areas alongside Dorset, however this 
strategy would allow for a focus on BCP residents.  

6



– 3 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

 A member asked about the 22% dissatisfaction rate in regard to 
support that carer’s had received from local GPs. The Committee 
heard that it the specific reasons for this were unknown, but it was a 

signal that the ASC should work more closely with GPs. This was 
particularly important because a lot of people and carers use their 

GP as a first port of call. Members were told that if an individual 
registers as a carer that it will make services available for them via 
their GPs. 

 On the issue of input from younger carers, the Committee were told 
that the ASC had met with the MyTime young carer’s charity. A 

workshop was held and good feedback was provided on their carer 
website. The feedback specifically from young carers was that they 
wanted short, informative videos to be made available on platforms 

that young people use, such as TikTok. This media must target what 
they as young carers are looking for and signpost where they should 

look for it. Members were informed that the ASC service social 
media presence had changed and was now more suitable for all age. 
Furthermore, ASC were specifically looking at their communications 

and how to get messages out there for the adult carers of the future. 
The ASC service were also working with their Children’s services 

counterparts in order to make a smooth transition between services 
for young carers and those who may receive care.  

 On the matter of the Carers Action Day, members heard that there 

was great feedback received on the day itself, insofar as it was a 
good opportunity to meet up with others in the same community. 

Future service planning would focus on how the ASC service can 
replicate events next year and maybe hold them more often.  

 The Committee were told about the single point of information, 
otherwise known as the ‘CRISP newsletter’ that carers can sign up 
to. This information also gets posted in GP practices, libraries, 

chemists and other places as a means to signpost individuals to 
additional, informative publications. The Committee acknowledged 

that the CRISP newsletter sounded a helpful resource but that 
perhaps more needed to be done to promote this as widely as 
possible. 

 The Committee heard that the ASC service were trying to get 
informative resources in additional forums, such as the Health 

Village in Bournemouth town centre, to tap into areas that could 
benefit from this. 

 On the issue of the ‘what we plan to do’ objectives, members heard 

that this was a strategic vision that was being worked on jointly with 
Dorset. The exercise was currently at the midway stage to review 

each of the 9 objectives. 2 workshops had taken place, but broader 
views were desired. The outcomes of this work would feature in the 

next stage of the vision and would be completed by mid-next year. 
This would be included in the next update to Committee if the pan 
Dorset vision was ready at same time as BCP Council’s. 

 
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the report.  

7



– 4 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

Voting: Unanimous 

 
171. Dementia Services Review  

 

The Head of Service (Mental Health & Learning Disabilities) Dorset CCG 

introduced and presented the report. The main points were as follows: 
 

 The Dementia Services Review was implementation from 1 April 

2021, however faced great challenge throughout the pandemic. 

 There was a changing diagnostic model with increased capacity that 

was central to the memory assessment service. This required the 
introduction of a multi skilled approach that would involve advance 
care and nurse practitioners. Less complex cases would also go 

through this process with medical psychiatrist input as well.  

 In the post-diagnostic area, a diagnostic coordinator role had been 

commissioned. This role was embedded into the primary care 
service and would specifically follow people from diagnoses to their 

end of life, monitoring their changing levels of need. 

 Throughout the process there had been ‘memory road shows’ 
provided. 

 Referrals to the service had plateaued in recent months. This would 
be monitored going forward. 

 A main aim for the BCP area was to hit the national diagnostic rate 
of 67% of primary care registers. 

 As part of the covid recovery, the service had been given temporary 
funding and through this the service was trying to recruit additional 
employees to catch up on the backlog of referrals. There were 

challenges in recruiting, but the service now had a full-time medical 
officer that could provide up to 50 slots a week. It was hoped that 

this would reduce waiting times. 

 Overall evaluation of the entire model would take place after it had 

been implemented and working for some time. The key metrics of 
waiting times, diagnostic rates and the experiences of carers and 
service users would all be factored into the evaluation. This 

information should be available at the beginning of the next financial 
year. 

 

The Committee asked several questions following the report. Answers were 
provided by the Head of Service (Mental Health & Learning Disabilities) 

Dorset CCG: 

 The committee heard that the service would not see student nurses 

providing diagnoses as this was a skilled activity, however students 
could observe assessments as these were undertaken by advance 
care nurses/practitioners and psychiatrists. 

 Members were informed that the average waiting time for a 
diagnosis was 16 weeks. This was identified as a prime challenge 

and the aim was to get this down to 6 weeks with the new full-time 
medic in place. Interim measures for those waiting for a diagnosis 
are memory roadshows and carers workshops with dementia 

8



– 5 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

coordinators working in primary care. This amount of advice and 
guidance was to keep communication channels up for people whilst 
they are waiting for a diagnosis. 

 On the issue of referrals from GPs, members heard that there was 
now better connectivity between the memory assessment service 

and the primary care network and GPs.  

 Members heard that within the community dementia service, 
emphasis was on early intervention in order to prevent people 

ending up in crisis and potentially hospital admission. The Dementia 
Coordinator, with support of the intensive support team, works with 

families to manage positive behaviour and any changes to 
medication. The intensive support team will only be present during a 
crisis, the ‘step down’ is when the crisis is over. 

 On the matter of memory roadshows, members heard that the 
roadshows act as a part of the Dementia Coordinators’ offer and 

would help raise awareness of what memory problems are, provide 
information on memory exercises to aid prevention and publicise all 

the support options available.  

 
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the report.  

 
Voting: Unanimous 

 
172. Home First Implementation Review  

 

The Director of Operations for Adult Social Care introduced and 
presented the report. The main points were as follows: 

 

 This was the second update on the new Home First model, following 
its implementation in January 2021.  

 The Home First model stemmed from the government guidance 
published in March 2020 on hospital discharge service requirements. 

 The programme would assist in the discharge of hospital patients at 
the earliest opportunity. This would enable to freeing up of hospital 

capacity and streamline the discharge process, utilising the right staff 
at the right time and place when necessary.  

 During 2021, the funding continued to be made available to those 

with enhanced need or new need of care. This funding stream was 
anticipated to remain up until March 2022. BCP Council continued to 

provide a dedicated workforce to implement the programme. The 
multidisciplinary team worked on a 7-day service that enabled 
people to take best pathway, bespoke to their needs. 

 The service is aware that their systems were struggling, as was 
common to the national picture, to get people safely discharged from 

hospital while maintaining the flow in hospitals. The system struggles 
periodically at times for those people who do not need further 
hospital bed respite.  

9



– 6 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

 The challenges and key actions facing the service were: capacity, 
beds, nursing home beds, more domiciliary rapid response care, 
communications strategy.  

 The financial impacts were primarily contained within the enhanced 
need of care for those discharged. The people leaving hospital on 

average receive 28 hours a week care, this would then be 
reassessed and on average reduces to 19.5 hours a week. 
Community cases are usually 14 hours on average. There was 

generally a greater need and level for care on those being 
discharged from hospital at present. 

 
The Committee asked several questions following the report. Answers were 
provided by the Director of Operations for Adult Social Care: 

 

 Members acknowledged the brilliant equipment provision service, in 

particular the speed and level of equipment that was provided to 
people.  

 The Committee were informed that the service hoped for other family 
members to be involved in the discharge process discussions, if 
appropriate. This would enable to service to gather information from 

the assistance support network that was already there and then 
factor that into any care provision. Service provision at the point of 

discharge should be temporary until a long-term plan can be 
assessed. Members heard that a rapid response from our service if 
the individual’s plan was not up to scratch would be in place. 

 On the issue of ‘Pathways’, it was clarified that Pathway 2 was for 
those who would be discharged into a recovery bed, this could be 

due to a fracture for example, where the individual would receive 
rehabilitation. Pathway 3 was for very high, complex needs likely for 
those individuals who would remain in residential care and have 

longer-term needs. Members were told that these were nationally set 
definitions.  

 On the issue of performance figures, namely the 250/300 individuals 
waiting for discharge from hospital, the Committee heard that the 

average stay for someone in hospital changes all the time, with most 
of these in UHD hospitals and only some in community hospitals. 
Additional capacity was being sought along with domiciliary care 

support to improve this situation. Members were told that this Winter 
season would be unlike previous Winters and will likely provide great 

struggles. There was an ongoing dialogue between services and 
teams to continue to move things forward and free up as much 
capacity as possible for those people who need to come in. The 

number of time spent on average in hospital differs for each person 
and therefore the length of stay is part of the quality improvement 

and monitoring. Prior to Covid, the average stay would be around 7-
9 days.  

 In a workforce context, members heard that the NHS was struggling 

to recruit staff, particularly therapists. This was impacting on the 
recovery plans within the community. The Care sector sees staff 

10



– 7 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

leaving constantly and therefore pressures were building primarily 
during the weekend hours and overtime. The pressure wasn’t just on 
how quickly the service could get people discharged but also on 

ensuring people’s wellbeing in the plans they require. The workforce 
in place was working harder than ever to support the higher level of 

need. 

 The Committee were informed that the BCP situation was reflective 
of the national picture and that the country was facing higher waiting 

lists and higher levels of need than before.  

 Members heard that both hospitals in BCP were acute hospitals that 

specialised in different areas. 

 On the issue of care staff, members heard that BCP are one of the 

highest fee payers in the country and specifically in the South West. 
Because the ASC service recognise that carers should get a good 
hourly rate. Therefore, it is not expected that pay is the issue in staff 

recruitment.  

 The Committee heard that a recommendation from the ASC service 

would be put forward for us to receive additional government funding 
to offset the £1.9million funding awarded during the Covid pandemic. 

 The Committee heard that the readmission figures, within 24 hours 

of discharge, were being sought by the service in order to circulate 
for members’ consideration. ACTION still working on this. 

 
 

173. Portfolio Holders' Update  
 

The Portfolio Holder for Tourism and Active Health and the Director for 

Public Health Dorset presented the item. The main points were as follows: 
 

 Covid infection rates remained high in BCP but the curve had 

plateaued over the start of the Winter period. 

 Current rates saw 592 cases per 100,000 of the BCP population in 

the week leading up to 21 November 2021. This compared to the 
South West rate of 523 per 100,000 and the English national rate of 

428.5 per 100,000. 

 Infection rates remained highest in the younger age groups. 
Primarily in school-aged children and the parental age group. 

 Hospitalisation rates were rising but remained significantly lower 
than where they would be without vaccinations. There were currently 

97 hospitalisations in BCP relating to Covid. 

 Case rates in BCP were akin to that of the figures in July 2021. 

 Demand for the booster programme was very high and the offer had 
recently been expanded to over 40s. 

 170,000 booster doses had been delivered across BCP, with around 
25,000 taking place per week. This rate saw 45% of eligible 
population vaccinated. 

 Walk-in clinic slots were being offered to meet the high demand. 

 People could try booking their booster via the national booking 

service or by waiting to be called by the GP. 

11



– 8 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

 Trusted Voices and Vaccine ambassadors were continuing to work 
with communities to deliver impartial information about the 
vaccination campaign in an attempt to increase the take up rate. 

 Local Outbreak Management Plans were in place and the 
importance of testing, tracing and isolation were of the utmost 

importance. 

 EpiCell were producing the near-term forecasts for hospital 

admission rates over the Winter period. 24 hours, 7 day a week 
consultant advice was also being made available during the Winter. 

 The outbreaks within care homes were slowly increasing, with 36 

open situations in BCP. 

 The #LetsTalkWinter campaign had been created in order to 

promote wellness and protection against illness/Covid. The key aims 
included boosting immunity by way of vaccinations, hygiene such as 
frequent hand washing, obtaining prescriptions in good time, helping 

and supporting friends and relatives in the community. 

 Supporting schools to stay open, providing targeted assisted lateral 

flow testing in public locations, extending the local contact tracing 
partnership until March 2022 and using the Trusted Voices approach 

and the Let’s Talk Winter campaign to improve communications 
were all highlighted as key issues and actions for the Winter period. 

 

The Committee asked several questions following the report. Answers were 
provided by the Director of Public Health Dorset and the Portfolio Holder for 

Tourism and Active Health: 

 The Committee were informed that there was now a ‘pharmacy 
collect scheme’ in place for people to pick up lateral flow test kits 

from their local pharmacy or chemist. The scheme required people to 
obtain a QR code from the national website before collecting a test 

kit, this was to allow information gathering on the number of kits 
being requested.  

 Members were told that the Community Testing Program provides 

assisted testing to those groups that cannot access QR codes or 
online facilities. These testing zones are usually in high footfall areas 

within BCP Council and will be supporting the Winter Wonderland 
and Christmas shopping areas. 

 On the issue of booster jabs, the Committee heard that the JCVI 

advise that the third dose (or booster jab) can be a different vaccine 
to your previous vaccines. In some instances this might offer 

additional protection as the vaccines are different and there is no 
need to worry if third dose is different.  

 On the issue of the Omicron variant, the Director for Public Health 
Dorset informed the Committee that it was too early to know much 
and that data was currently being collected from the international 

community. There was no certainty yet to compare to the previously 
dominant Delta variant.  

 Members heard that the previous thought that Covid would now be 
considered a seasonal virus had changed given the issues 

connected with ongoing transmission allowing the virus to mutate. 

12



– 9 – 

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE 

29 November 2021 
 

New variants may pose a greater threat in the future and it’s not 
solely about the vaccination programme as we need to remember 
other public health measures that can be useful in preventing 

transmissions going forward. 

 The Committee were reassured that the vital work within the 

community via the Community Action Network and the Together We 
Can campaign help people within society would continue. 

 On the issue of vaccinators, members heard that the local system 

had a limited number of trained vaccinators which could pose a 
challenge given the rollout to all ages of the booster. Additional 

capacity would need to be created for this in the coming weeks. 

 
RESOLVED that the Committee noted the update. 

 
Voting: Unanimous. 

 
174. Forward Plan  

 

Members considered the Committee’s Forward Plan. The main comments 
and suggestions were as followed:  

 

 The Chair referred members to the recent Budget Café presentation 

and encouraged them to seek information on this if they had not 
attended the session. The session provided detailed information on 
the ASC budget and a breakdown of what the service spends this 

on.  

 The Chair requested that the All-Age Autism project be added to the 

Forward Plan for a future date. 

 The Chair referred to the Hospital Infrastructure Plan Update item 
and requested that an update on this come to Committee shortly. 

 The Committee agreed for responses to the Front Door Service 
satisfaction survey to be circulated for members’ information. 

 
RESOLVED that the Committee agreed the Forward Plan.  

Voting: Unanimous. 

 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at Time Not Specified  

 CHAIRMAN 

13



This page is intentionally left blank

14



ACTION SHEET – BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE ADULT HEALTH AND SOCIAL CARE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  

*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 

recommendations 

are made to other 
bodies) 

 

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 2 March 2020 

63 COVID-19  For the Chair to work with Key Officers on how 

best to consider the ongoing issue of Covid-19. 
 
Action: For regular, brief email updates on 

the Council’s COVID-19 ASC response to be 
circulated to members and for an update to 

be presented to Committee at their 
meetings. 

 

For members to receive 

up to date, expert 
information on the 
ongoing issue of Covid-

19. 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Actions arising from Committee meeting: 30 November 2020 
 

110 Home First 

Programme 
(including update 

on the Better 
Care Fund) 

For the Committee to receive data on the 

readmission rates to hospitals in BCP following 
discharge through the Home First Programme. 

 
Action: Discussions will take place between 
BCP and NHS colleagues on capturing and 

presenting this information. 

For members to track the 

rate at which individuals, 
who have been 

discharged through the 
new process, had re-
entered hospital and 

whether there were any 
specific or identifiable 

reasons for this. 

 

15

A
genda Item

 6



Minute 
number 

Item  Action*  

*Items remain until action completed. 

Benefit Outcome (where 

recommendations 
are made to other 

bodies) 

 

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 8 March 2021 

120 Dorset ICS 

Strategic Outline 
Case; Health 
Infrastructure 

Plan. 

For the Committee to receive an update on the 

outcome of the NHS National Team and 
Treasury Office’s decision on the Business 
Case of the Health Infrastructure Plan. 

 
Action: For the Committee to receive an 

update on the Health Infrastructure Plan at 
their Committee meeting in March 2022. 

 

 

For members to track the 

process of the ICS at its 
various stages and plan 
future scrutiny 

accordingly. 

 

 

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 29 November 2021 

170 Carers Strategy 

Survey 

 

For members to receive the Carers Strategy 

Survey for their consideration. 

 

Action: The Committee were sent the 
survey on 29 November 2021. 

For members to have 

sight of the survey and its 

contents and direct back 

any comments or 

questions accordingly. 

 

174 Front Door 

Service 

satisfaction 

survey 

For the Committee to receive the Front Door 

Service satisfaction survey responses for their 

consideration. 

For members to track the 

feedback of service users 

of the new Front Door 

Service. 

 

 

16



HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Impact of the Pandemic (COVID-19) on Adult Social Care. 

Meeting date  17 January 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  To bring to the attention of this committee the pressures faced by 
Adult Social Care in respect of winter demand, the Covid-19 
pandemic and the workforce capacity challenges in the care sector.   

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

  Committee review the report; and 

 Committee make such recommendations as it sees fit 
to Cabinet for consideration. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

For the awareness of the Committee 

Portfolio Holder(s):  Karen Rampton – Portfolio Holder for People and Homes 

Corporate Director  David Vitty – Director for Adult Social Services 

Phil Hornsby - Director of Commissioning for People 

Report Authors Betty Butlin - Director of Operations 

Elizabeth Saunders- Interim Director of Adult Social Care 
Commissioning 

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Information and oversight 
Ti t l e:   

 

 

 

17

Agenda Item 8



Background 

1. During the Covid-19 pandemic it has been necessary for Adult Social Care to 
introduce new procedures to manage the increased demand for hospital discharges. 
In order to support the availability of acute hospital beds in Bournemouth and Poole 
for those people with urgent care needs, and particularly COVID-19 infections, it has 
been necessary to redirect a greater number of care resources (domiciliary care and 
care home places) to support rapid discharge. 

2. NHS Emergency Departments are facing heightened demand as a result of the 
pandemic, emerging winter pressures associated with factors such as influenza and 
cold weather-related illness and injury as well as continued COVID-19 infections. 

3. University Hospitals Dorset continues to experience significant challenges in their 
emergency departments. Occupancy and COVID capacity at both sites remain a 
challenge.  At the time of writing this report, waiting times in the Emergency 
Department regularly exceeded 4 hours and patients waiting for more than 12 hours 
increased to 294 per month. Admissions on each of the Poole and Bournemouth 
acute hospital sites total approximately 100 per day.   

4. It has become increasingly challenging to identify sufficient care resource to meet 
the escalating demand for hospital discharge support. Care agencies have been 
required to manage a range of infection control measures as a result of the 
pandemic, which has included staff vaccination, and have experienced difficulty 
recruiting and retaining staff. 

5. The continued challenge for care agencies to recruit new staff when competing 
against the local hospitality, manufacturing, and retail sectors, as well as absences 
caused by COVID-19 infection, would suggest a low level of confidence that 
workforce pressures will improve before the spring of 2022.  

6. Despite the challenges in recruiting within Adult Social Care operational areas, we 
are currently carrying 25 vacancies of which more than half have been successfully 
recruited to with start dates set. The main challenge is recruiting professionally 
skilled practitioners, particularly Occupational Therapists and Social Workers.  
Where needed, we are backfilling with a small number of agency staff. 

7. Among the many challenges faced by care providers during the pandemic, services 
have had to make sure that there is sufficient workforce with the right skills to cope 
with new and increased demand. Providers are still expected to meet CQC 
regulations and maintain a safe environment; managing the need to socially 
distance or isolate people and effective infection prevention and control to minimise 
the risk of cross-infection.  

 

System Pressures 

8. There has been continued pressure on hospital bed capacity, with occupancy levels 
consistently being at 95% and above. The reduced number of available beds has 
put pressure on all hospital areas such as emergency departments, general wards 
and critical care.  

9. The Dorset system has seen an increase in demand in the following areas:  

a) Acute Hospital Care- There has been an increase in the number of 

people attending emergency departments and in admission rates.  The 

national hospital discharge procedures, introduced as a response to the 

18



pandemic, require patients to be rapidly discharged once medically ready 
and then to receive reablement and therapy at home to recover. There is 

a general workforce shortage of nursing and therapy staff in both 
hospitals and community settings, and this is limiting the extent to which 

patients can fully recover at home. It is, therefore, necessary to provide 
more domiciliary care than usual to ensure patients with higher levels of 

needs are safe and well cared for after discharge. The level of care 

provided to individual patients after discharge has increased by 30% 
when compared to levels prior to March 2020. 

b) Community Hospitals- Have been able to assist in the management of 

high demand by taking individuals from acute hospitals that are not able 

to be discharged to a community setting, therefore freeing up acute bed 
capacity for those that need to go into hospital.  

c) Primary Care- GP practices have needed to apply resources to the 

vaccination and booster programme, which is placing additional pressure 
on primary care. 

 

Care Market 

10. There are currently 94 registered home care providers in the BCP Council area 
supporting 4,310 service users including self-funders, and Local Authority/Health 
funded clients (data: NHS capacity tracker 06/12/21). 

11. Since August 2021 76 packages of care have been handed back to BCP Council 
from 21 providers, across Bournemouth, Christchurch, and Poole.  

12. There are currently 150 registered care homes in the BCP area registered to provide 
residential support to maximum of just over 4700 service users. Since the start of 
2021, 7 care homes have either closed or are in the process of closing/due to close 
by December 2021. The homes that have closed or are closing represent a loss of 
174 registered bed spaces. Covid has significantly impacted our local Care Homes 
which is the same picture nationally too. A combination of factors since the start of 
the pandemic have negatively affected the sector and the impact seems to have hit 
the smaller homes harder: 

a) High number of deaths in care homes  
b) Ongoing low occupancy 
c) Increase in covid related costs 
d) Staff shortages due to pay and sickness 
e) Public concerns 
f) Mandatory vaccinations   have created the perfect storm on this sector.  

13. Feedback from Providers is that staff morale is low, and staff are exhausted hence 
they are seeing staff leave the care sector altogether. In addition, it is widely 
acknowledged over the last few years that the minimum number of units needed to 
make a care home financially viable is 60 rooms, all the homes that have closed or 
are closing fall into this arena with the average being 21 rooms.  All 7 care homes 
that have closed/ or are closing have cited low occupancy and or financial 
sustainability concerns as the main reasons for closure 

14. Providers are handing back packages of care and have cited staff shortages as the 
main reason for not being able to continue with individual services. Other reasons 

19



include being unable to meet increased complexity of needs and challenging or 
unreasonable behaviour from service users. 

 

 

 

Supporting the Market:  

15. Several initiatives have been rolled out under the ‘Proud to Care’ brand to support 
recruitment and retention and raise the profile of care locally with a view to building 
additional capacity in the local market. These include free childcare for framework 
providers in school holidays, free parking permits for providers to use in difficult 
parking areas across BCP Council area., as well as free hire of bikes as alternative 
to employing drivers, and avoid delays caused by traffic where parking is difficult. 

16. We have also promoted Proud to Care Awards in association with the Daily Echo to 
recognise outstanding achievements of local carers and organisations. 

17. We can also offer additional support with obtaining national grants such as Infection 
Control and Workforce Recruitment and Retention Fund and with completing the 
NHS Capacity Tracker in line with requirements. 

18. A domiciliary social media recruitment campaign has just ended. This is the third 
campaign that BCP Council has hosted in the last 12 months. Previous campaigns 
have included radio advertising, production of video montages and social media. 

Vaccinations as of 4th January 2022 

19. Care Homes 

95% staff received second dose (SW average 92%) 
41% staff had booster (SW average 38%) 
84% residents had booster (SW average 78%) 
 

20. Domiciliary Care  

86% staff known to have had Dose 1 
77% of providers reporting at least 80% of staff had had Dose 2 
 

21. Despite the unprecedented pressures and challenges, our Health and Social Care 
sector has worked together to ensure that individuals continue to be supported via a 
range of services which are being provided by the statutory sector and independent, 
private, and voluntary and community sectors.  

Adult Social Care Operations  

22. The impact of COVID-19 has been significant for adult social care operational 
services, with an increase in the number of people requiring services linked to 
hospital discharge. Hospital teams have seen an increase in activity of more than 
40% since the beginning of the pandemic.  From 1st April 2021 to 1st December 
2021 the hospital social work teams supported 3574 individuals and to deliver this 
level of activity have moved from five to seven day working. 

23. As a result of the immediate focus on hospital discharge, there are delays for some 
routine assessments in the community and where people require care at home, and 
there is often a delay before this can begin. Although urgent community care 

20



assessments are responded to immediately, non-urgent requests for assessment 
will often be delayed.  

 

 

As of 10th December 2021, new cases waiting, and overdue review cases stood at:   

Adult Social Care Area New 
Assessment 
Waiting List 

Number 

Reviews 
(Carers & 

Clients) Waiting 
List Number 

Long Term Conditions 987 912 

Asperger’s 24 15 

Learning Disability 3 313 

Safeguarding 91 0 

Deprivation of Liberty (DOLs) 1335 0 

Community Mental Health 0 51 

 

24. Cases waiting in all areas are regularly screened. In respect of safeguarding 
concerns these are triaged at point of receipt. Safeguarding Adults First Response 
Hub (SAFeR) determine the level of risk and will seek to put in place an interim risk 
management plan for those that cases require immediate responses and will alert 
the appropriate team if urgent follow-up actions are required.   

25. Over the last 20 months, there has been a significant increase in the number of 
Safeguarding Concerns received (approx. 100%) and this has led to an increase in 
the number of Safeguarding Enquiries too.  This increase is partly related to COVID 
and also an increased awareness of Safeguarding; for example, the increased 
pressures in the provider market and rapid hospital discharges. 

26. In respect of Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLs), all cases are triaged and 
prioritised using guidance from the Association of Directors of Adult Social Services 
(ADASS) guidance.   

 

Adult Social Care Winter Response 

27. Government and NHS funding has supported the enhancement of hospital social 
work and brokerage capacity in order to manage greater demand for hospital 
discharge. Voluntary sector support directly to hospital wards and the 
commissioning of additional temporary care home beds and domiciliary care hours 
have all increased capacity across the health and social care system to better 
respond to increased demand. 

 

 

 

 

21



 

 

 

 

Summary of financial implications 

 

 

Table 1: Adult Social Care Expenditure 

 

28. Adult social care expenditure (Table 1) focusses principally on care home and 
domiciliary care. The accelerated levels of hospital discharge and higher 
dependency needs of patients leaving hospital has placed greater demand on these 
two budget areas. It has also been the case that because of pressures on care 
homes from the pandemic, fee levels have risen substantially since March 2020. 

29. Approximately 20% of people in receipt of home care do so after a hospital 
discharge. The number of commissioned care home placements in 2021 was 2.5% 
lower than in 2019 because of the work that was undertaken to reduce demand for 
care home placements, but the overall average weekly fees are now 19% higher 
than in 2019 due to the pressures on the care home market up to December 2021. 
The weekly fees for people with a long-term condition having care and support 
following a hospital discharge are averaging 16% higher than those from within the 
community. 

30. As a result of these factors, additional domiciliary care hours have been required 
throughout 2021/22 at an estimated cost of £590,000.  

31. The additional cost of making care homes placements associated with the 
pandemic, and particularly urgent hospital discharges, is projected to be £892,000 
for 2021/22.  

22



32. In order for Adult Social Care to meet these additional COVID-19 costs, it has been 
necessary to draw on the COVID Pressures Grant received by all local authorities 
during 2021/22. In addition to the covid related care costs of £892,000, the grant has 
also funded £437,000 additional staffing costs, such as hospital social workers and 
brokerage officers, necessary to support the hospital discharge programme. 

33. The government has extended the Hospital Discharge Funding scheme until the end 
of March 2022. The funding covers care costs for people discharged from hospitals 
for up to 4 weeks. For the Health and Social Care System in the BCP area, this 
funding is estimated at nearly £8m for 2021/22. 

34. There have also been grants directed at the care sector: 

Grant National Allocation BCP Allocation 

Workforce Capacity 162,500,000 1,183,459 

Care Sector 
Protection 

300,000,000 2,184,847 

Infection Control 388,300,300 3,765,274 

 

35. These grants are administered by BCP council but are passed to providers to assist 
with workforce support, vaccination, and infection control measures. These financial 
measures are to help maintain safe capacity in the care sector, but do not directly 
fund care.  

36. Further system funding of £3m has been made available in December 2022 from 
Dorset CCG to support care capacity and will be applied to enhancing voluntary 
sector support for people leaving hospital and to provide financial incentives to 
support recruitment and retention of care staff. 

 

Summary of legal implications 

37. The Care Act (2014) is the main legal framework that adult social care work within to 
ensure the delivery of social care to those individuals and their carers with eligible 
needs. The Care Act sets out clear responsibilities and duties for assessing 
individual need and providing appropriate care and support to meet the assessed 
eligible need. The Act places a duty to promote an individual’s wellbeing and 
requires that we take this into account when assessing need and allocating and 
planning services. 

38. Where the longer-term care resource is delayed due to the lack of market availability 
but all appropriate actions have been taken by Adult Social Care to secure the care 
but on some occasions, particularly around hospital discharging there may be a 
need for an interim care provision, such as a step down bed. In such cases, we are 
able to demonstrate that all endeavours to source the appropriate care have been 
made which shows we continue to act lawfully as long as we are able to meet the 
care needs identified.  

 

Summary of sustainability impact 

39. There is a limited climate impact of care delivery, but it is recognised that practitioner 
travel to client’s homes leads to emissions and traffic congestion. Practitioners are 
encouraged to use public transport and alternative means of travel where 
practicable. 

23



40. Care Providers are responding to emissions from care use by working within smaller 
geographical clusters and endeavouring to reduce the travel distance required within 
the BCP area.  

 

Summary of equality implications 

41. The primary impacts are on older people who are at a higher risk of deterioration 
and loosing independence when they remain in hospital for longer than necessary. 
Other impacts are on those waiting for assessments and reviews, who are more 
likely to be older women with physical disabilities. 

Summary of risk assessment 

42. This report has noted a series of risks associated with the pressures on the health 
and social care system during the winter of 2021/2022. 

43. That care market capacity is limited because of workforce shortages. This has 
resulted in delays for some people who are waiting for care packages to start and a 
prioritisation of available capacity to support hospital discharge, with less care 
available to people in the community. 

44. That the pressures associated with the winter period and the Covid Pandemic will 
result in further demand on acute hospitals and as a result, placing greater pressure 
on BCP council to support hospital discharge. 

45. That an escalation in Covid infections may lead to further calls for local authorities to 
support rapid discharges in order to create bed capacity for urgent Covid-19 
treatment. 

46. That there is further pressure on the adult social care budget as a result of increased 
hospital discharges into care homes and more extensive domiciliary care packages 
as a result of people with high dependency needs leaving hospital. 

 

Background Papers 

Hospital Discharge Service Guidance, Department of Health and Social Care, 2020 

Hospital Discharge and Community Support: Policy and Operating Model, Department of 
Health and Social Care, 2021  

Appendices   

There are no appendices to this report. 

 

 

24



HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 

Report subject  Adult Social Care Emergency Duty Service 

Meeting date  17 January 2022 

Status  Public Report   

Executive summary  To update the Committee on the performance of the Adult Social 
Care Emergency Duty Service. 

Recommendations It is RECOMMENDED that:  

 (a) The Committee consider and scrutinise the contents of 
this report. 

Reason for 
recommendations 

The Emergency Duty Service provides vital access to people that 
need Adult Social Care advice, information and support outside of 
normal business hours, often at times of crisis.  

Portfolio Holder(s):  Cllr Karen Rampton – Portfolio Holder for People and Homes  

Corporate Director  David Vitty, Director of Adult Social Services Corporate Director of 
Adult Social Care 

Report Authors Betty Butlin, Director of Operations, Adult Social Care 

Nicola Hiles, Emergency Duty Service Manager 

Tim Branson, Head of Access & Carers Service  

Wards  Council-wide  

Classification  For Information  
Ti t l e:   

 

 

 

 

25

Agenda Item 9



Background   

1. The Adult Social Care (ASC) Emergency Duty Service (EDS) has provided adult 
social care advice, information and support outside of normal business hours across 
Bournemouth and Poole since it launched in November 2018. In April 2019, with the 
creation of BCP Council, the service expanded to encompass residents of 
Christchurch. 

2. The service operates when daytime social care offices are closed, namely from 
17:00 until 09.00 during the working week, Mondays to Fridays, and 24 hours per 
day every weekend and all bank holidays. 

3. The services provides a single point of access and response to adults in crisis or 
anyone who is concerned about the immediate welfare of someone with care and 
support needs, including those who are frail, or who have a physical or learning 
disability and people with mental ill health. The service is designed as an emergency 
response service and is expected to deal with: 

a. adults in crisis requiring statutory assessment (particularly under the 
Mental Health Act);  

b. adults experiencing harm from abuse or neglect. 

c. adults who have care packages where there is a problem associated with 
care delivery; 

d. adults requiring emergency placements in a residential or nursing home; 

e. adults in need of urgent support and signposting to essential services. 

4. The service is led by one Service Manager who reports to a Head of Service and 
one Team Manager.   

5. The service has five Contact Officers who are skilled, although not qualified or 
registered as Social Workers, who screen and risk assess all calls to the service. 
The majority of calls are resolved at that first point of contact. They are also trained 
to support vulnerable residents who are required to attend interview at the Police 
Station by acting as that person’s Appropriate Adult. Where further work, such as a 
Mental Health Act assessment is required, the Contact Officer on duty will pass the 
enquiry to one of the qualified social workers to undertake an assessment visit.   

6. There is funding for six qualified social workers, all of whom are required to be 
Approved Mental Health Practitioners (AMHP’s), able to carry out statutory duties. 
Recruitment of AMHP-qualified practitioners is always challenging due to a shortage 
of supply. This means it has only been possible to recruit to five AMHP posts. The 
EDS therefore has a small number of shifts which are covered by locum staff, 
AMHP’s from Dorset and BCP AMHP hub, which are funded from the sixth vacant 
post.  

7. The triage service ensures that there is a personal response to all contacts made 
with the service, even at times when all AMHPS are engaged. Further, the provision 
of triage resolves many straightforward enquiries which releases qualified AMHP 
staff to focus on the more complex and high-risk situations. 

8. Approved Mental Health Professionals (AMHPs) are mental health professionals 
who have been approved by a local social services authority to carry out certain 
duties under the Mental Health Act (MHA). They are responsible for coordinating the 
MHA assessment and admission to hospital where necessary. AMHPS are 

26



experienced practitioners (usually social workers, but they may be occupational 
therapists or nurses) who have undertaken a six-month academic course and 
complimentary fieldwork experience, as prescribed by the Mental Health Act. 

Operational Performance April-November 2021 

9. The ASC-EDS had received 2767 calls between April and November 2021, of which 
2331 were appropriate for EDS. In direct comparison from April to November 2020 a 
total of 3302 calls were recorded, of which 2823 were appropriate for EDS. 

   

 

        

 
 

   

 

      

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

           

            

 

 

 

 

10. Face to face visits are mostly made in response to people with mental health 
emergencies, adult safeguarding concerns, OT equipment and food parcel delivery, 
or vulnerable people who require an appropriate adult when in police custody.  

 

317
293 285

340
309

255 272 260

10
25 19

26 66

17
19 28

28 44
31

25 27

22
29 20

CA L L  A CT IVIT Y A P R  - N O V 2 0 2 1

EDS BCP CYPSC Dorset

306

409

333

419 395

326 313 322

23

28

27

29
32

19 29 3421

37

30

37
34

41 35 23

CA L L  A CT IVIT Y A P R  - N O V 2 0 2 0

EDS BCP CYPSC Dorset

27



  

 

11. The chart above shows a significant number of referrals are made to the EDS which 
require triage and result in ongoing work to support residents and patients. MHA 
referrals can be received from the hospitals (general acute hospitals and community 
mental health hospitals), and police custody suites. Safeguarding referrals are often 
received from the NHS community nurses, nursing and residential care homes, and 
with Police who request Appropriate Adult support. Referral rates have increased 
across all areas in the past 12 months.  

 

 

12. MHA referrals have increased as the EDS works more closely with the daytime 
AMHP Hub, with cases often transferring between the two services. MHA referrals 
have increased as the EDS works more closely with the daytime AMHP Hub, with 
cases often transferring between the two services. 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

Apr-21 May-21 Jun-21 Jul-21 Aug-21 Sep-21 Oct-21 Nov-21

Referral types

MHA Safeguarding Eqipment Food parcel AA

30%

5%
1%

1%2%

8%

1%
0%2%5%

45%

EDS support

MHA

Safeguarding

Eqipment

Food parcel

AA

POC

Residential

TWC

Housing

28



13. It has also become harder to find the appropriate doctors required to support Mental 
Act Assessments (MHAs) after 2am. To resolve this, and following consultation with 
the NHS, a mobile phone app has been introduced with the aim of giving access to a 
wider group of doctors to encourage support to manage overnight assessments. The 
NHS is also promoting the Section 12 doctor role in an effort to encourage more 
doctors to qualify.  

14. Partner agencies including Health and the Police regularly contact EDS for 
information and advice and discussions relating to Mental Capacity Act (MCA) and 
Best Interest decisions.  

15. EDS has made 92 referrals to out of hours housing between April and November 
2021. Some of these result from MHA assessments where the person being 
assessed is found to be of no fixed abode, or it is not safe for them to return to their 
home. Others are direct referrals from the person, family or friend into EDS. We can 
provide information and advice before redirecting to out of hours housing. 

Covid-19 

16. Since the arrival of Covid-19 in early 2020, the EDS has forged close links with 
colleagues at Together We Can (TWC), and has begun a record of food delivery 
parcels and referrals made to TWC. At the height of the first national lockdown, EDS 
staff delivered, on average, eleven food parcels a month to BCP residents in need 
outside of food bank operating hours. This reduced significantly as time went on to 
approximately two food parcels per month. 

17. Unlike daytime services, EDS face to face visits continued throughout the different 
covid lockdown periods, because the nature of MHA assessments is such that 
remote working is not feasible. Practitioners have therefore been trained and 
provided with all the necessary personal protective equipment needed to carry out 
their statutory duties effectively. Support has also been received from NHS 
colleagues who have provided Lateral Flow Tests, providing reassurance for EDS 
staff. The AMHP’s in EDS have all received their Covid vaccinations and boosters 
as they necessarily continue to regularly have face to face contact with service 
users.   

Impact 

18. It is rare for the EDS to receive feedback directly from people who have benefitted 
from its support, and no formal complaints have been recorded since it became 
operational. 

19. There has been, however, positive feedback and comments from informal carers 
and professionals from partner agencies, a sample of which appear below: 

(a) Compliment received from informal carers by an EDS Practitioner (AMHP)  

“Thank you so much for your fantastic care of X on Sunday night & for the 
information re Forston Clinic. We visited on our way home (though X was 
necessarily asleep) took clothes, toiletries and were able to provide Y with 
background info. Thank you again for your great care” 

 

(b) Compliment received by an EDS Practitioner (AMHP) from health colleagues 

“On behalf of the Intensive Support Team – Learning Disabilities, and especially on 

behalf of the patient, I am writing to convey our sincere thanks for the excellent 

29



service:  the result was (1) A safe assessment for Mr PB. Safe management of the 
environment (which was littered with broken glass and the floor was wet and 

slippery); (2) Safe person-centred care and management for Mr PB with necessary 
adaptations of communication to minimise the risks of causing further distress; and 

(3) A safe transition to hospital not requiring any physical interventions, resulting in a 
safe admission. 

(c) Compliment received by Contact Officer from a daytime service colleague 

“The handover on Monday was brilliant, it has made so much difference to my 

Monday morning.” 

 
(d) Compliment received by Contact Officer 

“Cannot praise enough, for the care and professionalism. Thank you so much.” 

Summary of financial implications   

20. The EDS operates with an annual budget of £775,300, the majority of which 

(£760,300) is for salaries. The service expects to achieve a balanced budget 
at year end.  

Summary of legal implications   

21. The EDS undertakes a range of statutory duties in accordance with prevailing 
legislation (predominantly the Mental Health Act), statutory guidance and 

codes of practice and the Care Act. 

Summary of human resources implications   

22. None. Committee may, however, wish to note the challenges of recruiting 
Approved Mental Health Practitioners, referred to in paragraph 6 above. 

Summary of equality implications   

23. There have been no significant changes made to the service that have a 
negative impact on the Council’s Equality Act duties. Any subsequent service 

changes deemed necessary will, however, be subject to an EIA 
conversation/screening document or full EIA as appropriate. 

Background papers   

There are no background papers. 

Appendices   

There are no appendices to this report. 

 

30



Forward Plan – BCP Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee  
Updated 06/01/2022 

The following forward plan items are suggested as early priorities to the Health and Adult Social Care O&S Committee by the Chair 

and Vice-Chair, following consultation with officers.   

 Subject and 

background 

Anticipated benefits 

and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 

done? 

 

Lead Officer 

 

Report 

Information 

17 January 2022 

     5. Adult Social Care Winter 
Position 

 

To receive a summary of 
the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic and 2021/22 
winter period on the 
delivery of adult social 
care, including a summary 
of the financial impact. 

 

To provide an opportunity 
for committee to scrutinise 
the impact of the Covid-19 
pandemic and 2021/22 
winter period on the delivery 
of adult social care, 
including a summary of the 
financial impact 

Report. Betty Butlin, 
Director of 
Operations 
Adult Social 
Care Services 

Requested by the 
Chair in consultation 
with the Director of 
Adult Social 
Services. Autumn 
2021. 

6. New Adult Social Care 
Emergency Duty 
Services 

To receive update about 
and to scrutinise the 
impact and performance of 

To provide an opportunity to 
receive an update about 
and to scrutinise the impact 
and performance of the 
adult social care emergency 
duty service. 

Report Tim Branson, 
Head of Service, 
Access & 
Carers Services  

 

31

A
genda Item

 11



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

the adult social care 
emergency duty service. 

7. Portfolio Holder Update 

 

To receive an update from 
the relevant portfolio 
holders on work and 
actions that have taken 
place since the last 
Committee meeting. 

To provide members an 
opportunity to track and 
comment on the work 
undertaken by the Portfolio 
Holders since the last 
Committee meeting and ask 
questions. 

Verbal update. Cllr M Iyengar 

 

Cllr N Greene 

 

7 March 2022 

8. Health Infrastructure 
Plan Update 

To receive an update on 
the Health Infrastructure 
Plan as part of the wider 
Dorset ICS process. 

 

To provide an opportunity to 
receive an update about 
and to scrutinise the latest 
progress of the plan’s 
implementation. 

Presentation. Richard Renaut, 
Chief of 
Strategy and 
Transformation 
UHD 

 

Stephen Killen, 
Transformation 
Director UHD 

 

Requested by the 
Committee at their 
meeting in March 
2021. 

23 May 2022 

32



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

DATE to be allocated 

9. 
Dorset Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
(CCG) – Mental Health 
Rehabilitation Service  

That an update on the 
strategic business case, 
including the financial 
details of the service 
would be provided to 
members. The next steps 
would also be highlighted 

The information provided 
will ensure that Councillors 
are aware of the proposals 
in this respect, and the 
views of the next stage of 
the process to be 
undertaken by the CCG. 

Presentation and report. Mark Harris, 
Head of Mental 
Health Dorset 
CCG 

Elaine Hurll, 
Principal 
Programme 
Lead for Mental 
Health at Dorset 
CCG 

 

        

10 

Structural Review of 
Safeguarding 
Community Safety 
Partnership. 

To ensure the Committee 
are informed of any 
changes to the 
arrangements. 

Committee Report  Independent 
Chair of 
Bournemouth, 
Christchurch 
and Poole 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board. 

 

 

11. 

Liberty Protection 
Safeguards. 

 

For the Committee to be 
informed on the guidance 
provided and 
implementation of Liberty 
Protection Safeguards.  

(Delayed implementation 
date of April 2022). 

 

Committee Report. David Vitty, 
Director of Adult 
Social Care 

April 2022. 

33



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

12. 
Suicide Prevention Plan 
Progress Report – 2022 

 

For the Committee to 
receive a progress report on 
the Suicide Prevention Plan 
at an appropriate time 
during 2022. 

Committee Report Elaine Hurll, 
Principal 
Programme 
Lead for Mental 
Health at Dorset 
CCG 

 

13. 
Dentistry Provision 

 

For members to receive an 
informative update on NHS 
dentistry provision. 

 

TBC TBC Requested by 
Committee members 
at 8 March meeting. 

14. 
Health services for 
people who are 
Homeless and Rough 
Sleeping 

For the Committee to 
scrutinise the health 
services available to people 
who are homeless and for a 
general update in the first 
Quarter of 2022. 

 

Report. Ben Tomlin, 
Housing 
Services 
Manager. 

BCP’s Draft 
Homelessness 
Strategy was 
considered by the 
Committee prior to its 
consideration at 
Cabinet in April 2021. 

 

 

 

15. 
111 and 111 First For the Committee to 

receive information on the 
111 and 111 First service. 
Highlighted as an area for 
potential joint scrutiny. 

TBC TBC Requested by the 
Chair and Vice-Chair 
in consultation with 
the Corporate 
Director for Adult 
Social Care – May 
2021. 

34



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

16. 
Day Opportunities TBC TBC TBC TBC 

17. 
Access to GP practices 
and appointment waiting 
times  

TBC TBC TBC TBC 

18. 
Dorset Care Record 
Update 

TBC Report? Phil Hornsby, 
Director of 
Commissioning 
for People 

 

David Vitty, 
Director of Adult 
Social Services 

TBC 

19. 
Think Big Project update The Committee will be 

updated on the progress of 
the Think Big Project in 
BCP Council. 

Verbal update Sally Sandcraft 
Director of 
Primary and 
Community 
Care   
NHS Dorset 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group CCG 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Adult Social 
Care 

Requested by 
Committee at their 
meeting on 27 
September 2021. 

35



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

20. 
Health and Wellbeing 
Board update 

The Committee will be 
updated on the work 
undertaken by the Health 
and Wellbeing Board. 

Verbal update Chair of the 
HAWBB? 

Requested by 
Committee at their 
meeting on 27 
September 2021 

21. 
Safeguarding Adults 
Board Annual Report 
(2021/22) and Business 
Plan (2021/22) 

To receive an update on 
the progress of objectives 
in 2021-22 and the 
Board’s Business Plan 
(2021-2022). 

 

The Committee will be 
updated on the work 
undertaken by the BCP 
Safeguarding Adults Board 
during the last year as well 
as the Board’s Business 
Plan for 2021/2022. The 
item will also provide 
opportunity for the 
Committee to consider how 
it would like to engage in 
future scrutiny opportunities 
relating to the Adult 
Safeguarding Board and 
consider any Committee 
training needs in this 
respect. 

Report. Siân Walker 
Independent 
Chair, 
Bournemouth, 
Christchurch 
and Poole 
Safeguarding 
Adults Board. 

Annual standing 
item; added to 
Forward Plan in 
consultation with 
Corporate Director 
for Adult Social Care 
and Chair of the 
Committee – 
November 2021. 

22. 
Healthwatch Dorset 
Young Listener’s Project 
– Update on the 
implementation of 
recommendations 

The Committee will be 
updated on the progress of 
the recommendations within 
the Young Listener’s report. 

Verbal update / report. Louise Bate – 
Manager 
Healthwatch 
Dorset. 

Requested by 
Committee at their 
meeting on 27 
September 2021. 

23. 
Bournemouth Birth 
Centre 

To enable members to be 
updated on the changes to 

TBC Lorraine 
Tongue, 

 

36



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

To receive an informative 
update from the Director of 
Midwifery (University 
Hospitals Dorset). 

 

service during the pandemic 
and of the next steps. 

Director of 
Midwifery, 
University 
Hospitals Dorset 

    24. 
Covid19 Update  

To receive an update from 
Public Health Dorset and 
Adult Social Care Services 
on COVID19. 

To enable the Committee to 
maintain oversight of this 
issue and target scrutiny as 
required. 

Presentation. 
Sam Crowe, 
Director of 
Public Health 
Dorset 
 

. 

Requested by the 
Chair and Vice-Chair 
in consultation with 
the Corporate 
Director of Adult 
Social Care; standing 
item since July 2020. 

    25. 
All-Age Autism Project   

 
Requested by the 
Chair at Committee 
in November 2021. 

 

    26. 
BCP Carers Strategy 
Update 

 

To receive For the 
Committee to receive an 
update on the progress of 
the strategy. 

To enable the Committee to 
monitor and input into the 
development of the 
strategy. 

Report. 
Emma Senior, 
Commissioning 
Manager: 
Prevention and 
Wellbeing.  
 
Tim Branson, 
Head of Access 
and Carers. 

Requested by 
Committee at their 
meeting in November 
2021. 

37



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

    27. 
Joint scrutiny on 
‘substantial variations to 
health services’. 

 

To consider the criteria 
that has been proposed to 
be added to the 
constitution, setting out 
what constitutes a 
‘substantial variations to 
health services’ in the 
Joint Health Scrutiny 
Protocol. 

 TBC 
TBC 

TBC 

Information Briefings 

  

 

Commissioned Work 

Work commissioned by the Committee (for example task and finish groups and working groups) is listed below: 

Note – to provide sufficient resource for effective scrutiny, one item of commissioned work will run at a time. Further 
commissioned work can commence upon completion of previous work. 

 

    26. 
The South West 
Ambulance Service 
Trust Improvement and 
Financial Investment 
Plan 

To enable Committee 
Members to scrutinise the 
impact of the improvement 
and financial investment 
plan on the response times 
and outcomes of the 
Ambulance Service. 

Possible joint scrutiny with 
Dorset Council. 

  

38



 Subject and 
background 

Anticipated benefits 
and value to be added 
by O&S engagement 

How will the scrutiny be 
done? 

 

Lead Officer 
 

Report 
Information 

    27. 
The implementation and 
performance of NHS 
Dorset Urgent Integrated 
Care Services  

Committee to agree 
enquiry session. 

 

To scrutinise the impact, 
service performance and 
outcomes of the NHS 
Dorset Urgent Integrated 
Care Services (April 2020, 1 
year after implementation). 

Possible Joint Scrutiny with 
Dorset Council. 

  

    26. 
External Scrutiny – 
Quality Accounts. 

 

 

To ensure Committee 
members have the 
opportunity to scrutinise the 
quality accounts of the NHS 
Trusts. Scrutiny leads for 
NHS Dorset Quality 
Accounts will need to be 
revised due to Committee 
membership changes since 
first arrangements. 

Rapporteur model. Elaine Stratman, 
Principal Officer 
Planning and 
Quality 
Assurance. 

(Item has been 
postponed due to 
COVID19). 

Update Items 

The following items of information have been requested as updates to the Committee. 

The Committee may wish to receive these in an alternative to format to Committee updates (e.g. by emailed briefing note outside 

of the Committee) to reserve capacity in Committee meetings for items of value-added scrutiny. 

 

39



T
his page is intentionally left blank

40


	Agenda
	4 Confirmation of Minutes
	6 Action Sheet
	8 Impact of the Pandemic (COVID-19) on Adult Social Care
	9 Adult Social Care Emergency Duty Service
	11 Forward Plan

